

- Article I This organization shall be know as the Seneca County Little League (SCLL)
- Article II **OBJECTIVE:** The objective of the SCLL shall be to implant firmly in the boys & girls of the Communities the idea of good sportsmanship, honesty, loyalty, courage, **and** reverence, so That they be finer, stronger, and happier boys and girls and will grow up to be good, clean, healthy adults.
- Article III **GOVERNMENT:** The government of the SCLL shall be under the direct supervision of the President of the managing personal, composed of all the coaches, supervisors, and others Appointed by the President and ratified by the managing personnel. At the annual meeting, the Managing personnel shall elect from its own membership, a President and Secretary/Treasurer. The aforementioned Officers shall hold office for one year but may be re-elected or volunteer For continuance years. All matters concerning the policy of the SCLL shall be decided by vote from the majority of the members of this body.
- Article IV **MEETINGS:** A meeting of the managing personnel shall be conducted in April of each year for the reading of reports and election of officers. The Secretary/Treasurer will send the aforementioned report to the managing personnel in March for there study. This report shall contain all financial obligations of the league and shall contain meeting dates for the sub--committees to organize reports for the managing personnel to consider at the April meeting. Additional meetings may be called by the President or upon written request of at least three {3} members of the managing personnel. A majority of the members of the managing personnel shall constitute a quorum at any meeting and the majority vote of those present shall govern, except when otherwise especially provided.
- Article V The coach is the responsible managing personnel of the community he or she represents and is Responsible for the conduct of his/her team on the field.
- Article VI **MEMBERSHIP:** Any boy or girl meeting the requirements as to age and residence as set forth in the rules, shall be eligible to active membership in the league. Any adult having an active interest in the SCLL may be invited by the managing personnel to become an associate or honorary member. The managing personnel shall have the authority to suspend any member or coach whose conduct is considered as detrimental to the best interests of the league. The managing personnel shall also have the authority to suspend any community from participating in the league if that community shows lack of respect for the league and or its members. The managing personnel shall also have the authority to suspend any player from the league if there is any evidence of misconduct by any member boy or girl, members of the managing personnel, as selected by the President, shall notify the coach of the team of the member indicated, with in 24 hours of the act committed. Within three (3) days of the act, the coach of the member indicated, along with the member in the capacity of an advisor, shall have a hearing before at least three (3) members of the managing personnel.
- Article VII **AMENDMENTS:** This constitution or any section thereof may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds vote of the managing personnel present at any stipulated meeting; provided that written notice of such proposed change(s), over the signature of the Secretary/Treasurer, shall be mailed to each member of the of the managing personnel at least five (5) days prior to the meeting at which proposed change(s) shall be submitted to vote.

Adopted April 1977

- 1-A Any player to be eligible to participate must be age 12 on or before April 30, however any player who reaches age 13 on or before April 30 will not be able to pitch. 13 year old must be voted exempt. No 13 year old exemptions will be accepted after conclusion of the Organization Meeting vote for the remainder of that year. No one will be allowed to play little league if they choose to play in Jr. Pony League. {Revised 2015}
- 2-A A child must reside in or attend school in the district he or she represents (original elementary school districts before consolidation). A child who resides with a parent for the summer will be eligible to play in that district.
- All of Clinton Township is the eligible area for Clinton Little League Baseball. Request for exemptions to be submitted to the Rules Committee. (Revised 1993)
- Players on borderline communities must be turned in prior to the organization meeting to be voted on for eligibility no later than the next meeting when balls and schedules are picked up. Any submissions after this meeting are not eligible to play for that year. (added 1995). A copy of the registration card of the player(s) must be submitted to the secretary prior to the last scheduled meeting prior to vote on player(s). Only a limit of two (2) players per team roster will be allowed. (Added 1996)
- 2-AA Any player(s) who at 9 years old is granted exemption will not be voted on each year except if they leave the league and come back, changes to play for another team in the league.(Added 1997)
- 2-B Each player must be furnished a registration card of the local community, which must be filled out & signed by the parents or guardians, & returned to the coach of the team before the player will be eligible to compete in any league play.
- 2-C Any player, playing in any part of one (1) inning of “A” division ball, is ineligible to play “B” division ball for the remainder of the season.
- 2-D Any player, playing “B” division ball may be advanced to “A” division ball, but may not re-enter “B” division ball for the remainder of the season.
- 2-E No more than two (2) “A” division players may rotate to “B” division at the beginning of the season.
- 2-F No team can play with less than eight (8) players. An automatic out will apply for the ninth player whenever that player is scheduled to bat. If a team starts with eight (8) players, they can add an additional player if they arrive, however, if a team starts with eight players, and a player becomes injured and can't play, the game must be forfeited. (Added 1990)
- 2-G The coach has the option to bat their entire roster & they may play any defensive position at anytime providing they remain in the same spot in the batting line up . This is an option only, coach does not have to bat entire roster but must declare it prior to game start. He may also have a standard 9 player line up. If a coach has the entire roster line up & a player or players are injured or are unable to play no out will be issued for that position (s) in the line up unless they have only 8 players remaining then the first player in the line up that is out of game shall be recorded as that out only. See rule 2-F.
THIS REPLACES THE FORMER RULE OF EXTRA HITTER
 {Added 2006} {Revised 2015}

- 3-A All league games must be played by the first tournament game. All games not finished by this date will be counted as a loss for both teams. If however, late season weather is determining factor, the President can allow games to be played after this date. The President may also rule that if is the fault of only one team, that the game is not played in time, the team at fault will be charged with a forfeit loss & a win goes to the other team .The President may allow the Rules Committee to decide theses matters.
- 4-A Whenever schedule conflicts occur with other activities, the coaches of the team or teams involved shall rearrange their schedules for that particular game or games. However, the rearrangement must not conflict or cause undue hardship on any other team(s), & must be agreeable to both coaches. Vacations of players & coaches are not considered schedule conflicts.
- 5-A The umpires will be furnished by the home team with the home plate umpire acting as the official umpire for the game. Two (2) umpires are necessary. The visiting team will provide the first base umpire unless the home team already has provided the base umpire. If home team can't supply base umpire they are to contact visiting team to bring an umpire. (Revised 2014)
- 5-B The home plate umpire shall notify the coach or representative(s) of the visiting team concerning the rules pertaining to the playing field.
- 5-C Umpires who start the game must finish the game unless on case of injury or called away on an emergency. Substitute umpires must be agreed upon by both head coaches. (Added 1995)
- 5-D It is required by league officials that the umpires be at least high school seniors or older, & that all umpires have the basic knowledge of baseball rules. All umpires should be given new rules for the season before the game begins. (Revised 1990)
- 5-E Each home team will provide two (2) game balls for each game. All league balls will be bought by the league, which will be included in each team entry fee. (Revised 1987)
- 5-F The official league approved baseball for “A” & “B” leagues will be Rawlings LLB. The league will purchase the baseballs for all league and tournament games. (Revised 1991)
- 6-A All rules pertaining to safety players must be honored, such as helmets, supporters, no jewelry, etc.. Face shields will be allowable (not mandatory), as legal part of uniform. (Revised 1992)
- 6-B All batters and base runners will wear helmets this includes on deck batter and any player in the coaches box.
- 6-C At no time shall a player will be allowed to participate in a game if a player is wearing athletic shoes that have steel cleats or spikes.
- 6-D Any player who deliberately removes his batting helmet while running the bases shall be called out by the umpire after the play has been completed. If the out occurred before a run scored, that run will not count, if it was the third out. The umpire will be the judge in determining whether the helmet was removed deliberately.
- NOTE:** *A player who adjusts there helmet or who removes there helmet during a “dead ball” situation is not considered to be removing there helmet deliberately.* (Revised 1990)

- 6-E** If a batter in the judgment of the umpire throws the bat while hitting, he shall give both benches a warning the next time any batter from either team throws a bat a dead ball will be called & the batter shall be called out. There is no limit on batters that can be called out after bench warnings is issued in the game. Throwing of the bat constitutes to back stop, 1st or 3rd base fences or into catcher, umpire or mound. (Added 2010)
- 6-F** No courtesy runners are allowed unless for an injured player & the last player to make an out or a player that has not been in the line up may be inserted. (Added 2010)
- 7-A Six innings shall constitute a game or unless the game is tied, a winner shall be determined. (Revised 1989)
- 7-B Any team failing to be on the field and ready to play thirty (30) minutes after the designated time of scheduled, shall forfeit the game.
NOTE: This rule does not apply if a game is scheduled on the field earlier and runs over scheduled time of game.
- 7-C In case of rain, darkness, or curfew in a regular season game, the team ahead after 4 or more completed innings will be the winner. The decision of the umpire shall be final. However, if a tournament game must be stopped for any reason, the game will resume at the point where it was suspended. *NOTE: Run rule apply to tournament games.*
- 7-D The third strike on a batter in “A” league only, must be caught to constitute an out. If the catcher drops the ball or misses the ball, or the ball hits the dirt before he catches it, the batter is not out unless tagged by the catcher or put out at first base. If first base is occupied with less than 2 outs, the batter is automatically out. *NOTE: The batter is not officially out until they reach the dugout area. If the batter realizes he/she may run, they must run in a straight line to the base they started.*
- 7-E The infield fly rule will be called. (Added 1989)
- 7-F** An intentional walk can be requested by a coach to umpire where the batter will automatically be sent to first base. (Added 2010)
- 8-A All games will be played on a diamond with 60 feet base paths “B” leagues will have a 46 feet pitching distance. “A” leagues will have pitching distance of 50 feet & base paths at 70 feet. (Revised 2010)
- 8-AA “A” League ONLY Runner may steal a base on full release of ball from pitcher's hand. If base runner leaves base before this the umpire shall give a warning to the player & the team. If it occurs a second time to the same team, the player shall be called “out” immediately. If the warning is called when the batter hits the ball, the umpire shall call a dead ball & the pitch is replayed. If the second occurrence the umpire shall also call a dead ball {Added 2011}
- 8-B No pitcher can pitch more than 3 innings in any one game, but he may be used in other positions. *NOTE: Innings are not necessary to be consecutive if team plays two games in one (1) day, a pitcher may pitch three (3) in each game.*
- 8-C A coach will be permitted no more than one (1) conference per inning while on offense, to confer with his batters or runners. Any subsequent conference, the umpire will deny and call to resume play immediately. (Revised 1991)

- 8-CC If a coach(s) crosses foul line into fair territory twice in same inning to confer with pitcher on the 2nd meeting the pitcher must be replaced with a new pitcher. An injury to the pitcher will not count as a defensive visit. (Added 2010)**
- 8-D When a relief pitcher is substituted in the middle of an inning, that inning shall constitute a full inning of pitching for ether pitcher. If the beginning pitcher brought back in to pitch, in the same inning, no inning may count more than one **(1)** inning. (Revised 1985)
- 8-E “A” & “B” leagues base runners may steal home at any time (on passed ball, wild pitch, etc.). (Revised 1990)
- 8-F Base runners are not allowed to steal any base unless a definitive move to do so has been made before the pitcher returns to the pitching rubber to make the next pitch.
- 8-G If a base runner leads off before the ball crosses the plate, the umpire shall give a warning to the player & to the team. If it occurs a second time to the same team, the player shall be called “**out**” immediately. If the warning is called when the batter hits the ball, the umpire shall call a dead ball & the pitch is replayed. If the second occurrence applies, the umpire shall also call a dead ball. (Added 1987)
- 8-H In case of a tie after six **(6)** innings of play, the game must played until a winner is determined. The three **(3)** inning rule for pitchers is still in effect. No pitcher can come back & pitch in extra innings if they have already pitched three **(3)** innings before. If darkness halts the game, the game must played in its entirety. ***NOTE:** Tournament games will resume from the point from which the game was halted.*
- 8-I Any player using excessive body contact (body blocks, plowing into, tripping, extra hard tags, etc.), will be ejected immediately from the game for unsportsmanlike conduct. If a player verbally attacks an umpire, coach, or another player, that player shall be given a three **(3)** game suspension from the league, starting with the next game. The opposing coach will notify the league President to report the incident. The league President will then notify the next three **(3)** coaches to enforce the “unsportsmanlike” rule.
***NOTE:** A player who accidentally uses “slang” words will not be included to be verbally attacking, “unsportsmanlike” rule. A player who deliberately uses “slang” words will be affected by this rule. (Revised 1990)*
- 8-J If a coach attacks an umpire physically (arguing is not enough), an immediate forfeit of the game will be called. The coach will be suspended from the league for the entire year. (Added 1987)
If any coach is ejected from any game, an inquiry board of at least three {3} Rules Committee members with the President of the SCLL as the moderator, the coach involved & or a representative from the team, witnesses to the incident shall meet no more than a week after the ejection. The board shall hear all evidence & rule on the matter. If the coach is found to be ejected for just causes, he/she shall be suspended for the next three {3} scheduled games. If the coach is ejected anytime again in the same season he/she shall be suspended for remainder of season after a hearing in front of board. If violation occurs in post season he/she shall be suspended for two {2} games of following season, depending on ruling of Rules Committee board. This also carries a probationary period of not more than two {2} years for community involved, as well as possibility of no post season games for that period. {Added 2006}

- 8-K No “tobacco use” allowed on the field by players, coaches, umpires, etc. They must be removed from the playing area. If an adult must continue this habit, they must go to an area away from the field. (Added 1990)
- 8-L Sliding is allowed at all bases. (Added 1995)
- 9-A If it is necessary for a collection from any Seneca County baseball league tournament for league expenses, the monies are to be turned over to the SCLL secretary.
- 9-B The rules of the Seneca County baseball league will be official at all tournament & all-star games.
- 9-C In a league double elimination tournament, any team that forfeits its first game will be eliminated from rest of tournament. (Added 1983)
- 9-D The tournament shall be set by seeding all teams by using regular season standings with the following provisions:
1. 81% of regular league games must be completed on week prior to tournament draw.
 2. The tournament draw date shall be given at the time the schedules are given out.
 3. First seed team will play last seed team. The second seed team will play next to last seed team & so on. **NOTE:** *Second seed team will be other division winner with 2nd best record*
- At tournament draws for “A” & “B” league coaches shall have the the choice by majority vote whether to have all seeds mixed according to records or to have divisions only top part of bracket division one {1} & bottom part of division two {2} play out the brackets to end. {added 2006}
- If byes are required in tournament brackets, the team with best record shall receive a bye and be placed at the top of the second round upper bracket. If two byes are needed, the second best team record will be placed at the top of the second round lower bracket and all other byes shall be placed in the center of the bracket. The third best on the bottom center and the forth best team on the center of top bracket. This is for first round bye only. All other teams will be paired with the next best record, playing the next worse record. See appendix A for sample brackets. (Revised 1996)
- 10-A A \$145 entry fee will be charged for each “A” & “B” team. (Revised 2000)
- 10-B All league fees must be in the hands of league secretary by first regular season game.
- 10-C All teams will submit a team roster with there entry fee. All games played before entry fee and roster is turned in must be forfeited. If circumstances prevent a roster from being turned in, arrangements must be approved by the secretary.
- 10-D The league secretary must be notified in advance of any changes in team rosters. The secretary will all team roster changes at the tournament draw.
- 10-E Roster changes can not take place after June 15 unless a player moves up from a lower level within the community organization. (Added 1983)
- 10-F No roster changes will be permitted after first scheduled game of tournament. (Added 1989)

- 11-A Violation of any rules or any part of the constitution by-laws can results in a team being disqualified from the league & tournament play.
- 11-B Any coach claiming such violation must register a protest with the official umpire of the game at the time of such violation.
- 11-C The coach after filling a protest with the umpire, must within 24 hours, notify the President of the league by phone, then in writing, claiming such violation.
- 11-D The same rule applies in filling a game protest.
- 11-E The President, after receiving in writing the coach's claim of such violation, must call a meeting or the Rules Committee of the league with in five **(5)** days. The rules committee then has the authority to decide if any violation has been committed. If a violation has been committed, the committee may require the game or games to be forfeited or to continue the game at the protested spot of the game.
- 11-F The **Rules Committee** will be a group of six **(6)** individuals selected by the coaches at the organization meeting and the President. The rules committee shall not have more than one member from one community. If a member of the rules committee can not finish a term, the President shall select someone to finish the term. A majority vote of at least five **(5)** members of the Rules Committee is how a protest is determined. If a member of the Rules Committee is involved in a situation that is protested they shall not be allowed to vote on the matter.
- 12-A Starting players only may re-enter the game once & must return to the same batting position. Substitutes may re-enter the game once to the same batting position. (Revised 2014)
- 12-B No team player may occupy more than one position in the batting order. (Added 1979)
- 12-C The exception to Rule 12-B is when a player is injured. If all substitutes have played in the game, any previous player that that was substituted for, may replace the injured player on the field & in the batting order. (Revised 1993)
- 12-D No 12 year olds as of April 30, will be allowed to pitch for "B" league teams. {Revised 2005}
- 13-A "A" league will be split into two **(2)** divisions, fifteen **(15)** trophies (maximum), will be awarded for the first & second places in each division. Trophies will be awarded to first, second, third, & fourth places in tournament. (Revised 1989)
- 13-B "B" league will be awarded the same as "A" league. (Revised 1989)
- 13-C Trophies, fifteen **(15)** maximum, and or plaques will be awarded to the top four **(4)** teams in the tournament, providing there are at least eight **(8)** teams in tournament. (Revised 1987)
- 13-D If a division ends in a tie, regardless the number of teams, a tie breaker system will determine the division winner. If same occurs for second place, the same tie breaker will be enforced, in order as listed below for tournament seedings. {revised 2006}

For tournament seeding, the following format will be enforced in the following order: 1) head to head record 2) divisional record 3) record versus other division 4) best away record 5) best home record 6) best away record versus other division 7) best home record versus other division 8) coin flip (this is to eliminate unnecessary play off games). (Revised 1097) (Replaced rules 13-D & 13-E)

- 13-DD A-B-C leagues, 1st, 2nd, & 3rd { if bracket contains 5 {five} or more rounds} rounds of the tournaments shall be hosted by the highest seeded teams, if they can't host the game than the opponent shall have option to host game. A coin toss will determine home & away teams. If nether communities are unable to host theses games then at tournament draw they shall choose a site that is agreeable. The Semis, Finals & All Star games will be chosen at the Organization meeting or at tournament draw. {Added 2009}
- 13-E A bat only up to 2 ¼ inch barrel will be permitted for all league play. Any other bat with larger size will be illegal even if Little League Approved is stamped on it. If an illegal bat is found to be used in a game the umpire shall take it out of play & a warning will be issued & reported to the league President, Secretary or a member of the Rules Committee after the game. If the same team is caught using another bat or same bat game a dead ball foul will be called & batter is automatically called out. If a team is caught using illegal bats in other games it may constitute a forfeiture of the game & or games played with the illegal bats, after a hearing with the Rules Committee. {Added 2008}
- 14-A No pitcher can be called for a balk.
- 14-B There are no appeals. If a runner misses base or leaves early on a sacrifice fly, the runner shall be declared out by the umpire. The umpire must see the runner miss the base or leave early. If the third out is the result batter/runner missing first base, no runs will score. (Added 1988)
- 15-A Any team ahead by twelve (12) runs after four (4) or five (5) completed innings, will be declared the winner. (Revised 1983)
- 16-A If only one team can be formed, it will be an "A" team, unless a community is granted an exemption by the entire league at the organization meeting. (Added 1987)
- 17-A All players will have numbers displayed somewhere on there jerseys or uniforms, unless circumstances prevent a team from doing so. (Added 1983)
- 18-A The league will give a salary of \$150 to the Secretary/Treasure & \$25 to the President, & if one person is doing both jobs a total of \$175 will be there yearly salary. (Revised 2004)
- 19-A The league will be divided into two (2) divisions according to size. Size shall be determined by the amount of players each site signs up for A-B & C leagues. The 1st division will exist of the sites with the most amount of players participating with the 2nd division with the least. This will change from regional locations. A site may produce more than one {1} team. That site shall be placed in the other division provided they satisfy the above regulation. A site in the 2nd division may request to play in the 1st division, submitted to SCLL prior to deadline for rosters. Once schedules are out no player shall be added to a roster with out permission by rules committee { majority vote} submitted in writing. Violation in this could result in forfeiture of all games & eliminated from tournament. (Revised 2005)
NOTE: The above rule covers A & B Leagues only C shall follow divisions as stated below.
- Division-1 Bascom-Bettsville-Burgoon-Fostoria-New Riegel-McCutchenville-Tiffin Catholic
 Lakota St. Joe *Clyde was voted out of league in 2012
- Division-2 Bloomville-Clinton-Green Springs-Melmore-Old Fort-Seneca East -Sycamore
 Upper Sandusky
- NOTE: In the event, communities that may have two (2) teams which will leave an unbalanced number
 Of teams per division, an adjustment may be necessary in the division.* (Revised 2004)
- 20-A All winning coaches shall call or email the secretary/treasure the Sunday following the previous weeks games and give all results played that week. A composite standings shall be kept for A-B-C leagues the entire season. Standings shall be recorded in the local newspaper.
 (Revised 1996) **NOTE: See rule 15-A under "C" league rules.**

20-B Any other rules not listed will follow www.baseball-almanac.com/rulemenu.shtml
(Revised 2013; previously rule 20-A)

21-A For tournament play, the league will provide an umpire for home plate furnished by the home field for all preliminary games. The opposing team will furnish the field umpire. The league will supply both home plate & one base umpire for the tournament finals. The league will pay up to \$35 per umpire in finals & must be licensed umpires. Home plate umpire for preliminary tournament games will not be paid by the league. (Revised 2013)

“C” League Rules

- 1-A Rosters should include players who are eight **(8)** years of age before April 30, but no older than eleven **(11)** years of age by August 1st. However, if unusual circumstances prevent a twelve **(12)** year old from playing “A” or “B” league, the player may play.
NOTE: It is the intent of the league to let all youngsters play. (Revised 2005)
Any player who is under the eight **(8)** year old deadline of April 30, of that year must have parents or guardian sign a voucher stating that the player can play “C” league, if all league responsibility for injury is waived. Two **(2)** vouchers must be signed by the parents or guardian, one **(1)** copy goes to the coach & the other copy will be sent to the league Secretary for league records. (Added 1996)
- 2-A No eleven **(11)** or twelve **(12)** year old will be allowed to pitch. If a player turns eleven **(11)** on or after April 30, he/she will be allowed to pitch.
- 3-A The pitching distance will be forty-two **(42)** feet. (Revised 1994)
- 3-B A coach will take it upon him/herself to remove a pitcher if it becomes obvious the pitcher has no pitching control.
- 4-A All players shall bat in turn. This includes players not playing defense. Coaches shall exchange batting line-ups of all players before the game.
- 4-B If a player is a late arrival for the game, the player will be placed at the bottom of the batting order, no matter where the team is in the batting order at the time of the game.
- 5-A A team may have as many players on there roster as they wish but no matter how many attend the games, they must all bat.
- 6-A Free substitution is allowed. Any player can play any position in the game at any time. We encourage all coaches to play there players on defense in equal amounts. Once a player is taken out of the game on defense, the player may re-enter at any time.
- 7-A Four **(4)** out fielders will be used. A maximum of ten **(10)** players can play on the field at one time. We encourage coaches to only use the four **(4)** regular in fielders. However, if a situation arises where You need to play an extra infielder, you may do so.
- 7-B If a team only has nine **(9)** players available, there is no automatic out for the tenth player. However, if a team has ten **(10)** players available, all ten **(10)** must play. (Revised 1990)
- 8-A There will be up to six **(6)** innings per game. A maximum five **(5)** runs per inning is allowed. The last official inning {6th in non time limit game & last declared inning in time limit game 4 maximum for official game} shall be unlimited inning. In regular season only a 2 {two} hour time limit will be set for each game. No new inning may start after 2 hour time limit, however if an inning starts prior to 2 hour time limit it must be completed. In a regular season game if it is in a tie after 2 hour time limit after inning is completed it shall remain a tie, however in post season a winner must be determined if need be extra innings will be allowed. However prior to game both coaches & umpires must meet before the game & determine whether the 2 hour time limit will or will not be enforced, if it is to be enforced then regardless of the inning just prior to the end of the time limit shall be declared the final inning & must be completed this shall also be the extended inning. If the time limit was not discussed prior to the game as indicated as above then the time limit is automatically waved. **2 hour time limit is not in effect during post season games. {Revised 2008}**
- 9-A No shorts are allowed. Sliding is permitted
- 10-A No infield fly rule will be enforced. (Revised 1994)

- 11-A Home team will supply two **(2)** new balls for each home game. The baseballs should be Little League approved baseballs. The communities are obligated to purchase baseballs for all league games.
- 12-A A base runner at 3rd base can only advance to home plate when a ball is put into play by a hitter or when a play is made at 3rd base, if the baseball is thrown to a player covering the play at 3rd base, for example as in a throw by a pitcher on the mound area as a pick off or by a catcher in a pick off move or if a ball is over thrown to the pitcher & an infielder or outfielder retrieves ball & he throws to 3rd in an attempt to get runner out at 3rd. Stealing of 2nd & 3rd bases is allowed on a passed ball by the catcher, however only one (1) base may be taken per passed ball (at runners risk) in all above situations. If a runner is at 1st & 2nd or at 1st or just 2nd & ball is put into play by hitter & a throw is made at 3rd to put runner out & it gets away the runner at 3rd may advance to home as this is a continuous play. Also once a base runner reaches a base after the steal a dead ball play will be declared. Passed ball is defined as follows: When a catcher leaves catchers box area completely to retrieve a passed ball to front, rear or sides of catchers box this shall be a passed ball. **See diagram on page 12.** (Revised April 2009)
- 13-A Regulation baseball will be played in regards to balls & strikes. Four **(4)** balls is a walk and three **(3)** strikes are an out.
- 14-A No player may play in “C” league if he/she is playing in “A” or “B” league. If a player is switched to “C” league he/she will be disqualified from playing “A” or “B” league for the rest of season. However, a player may move up to play in upper leagues and remain there. A & B teams may bring up C players during C tournament only if (1) C team is eliminated from C tournament (2) player is not on C team All Star team roster (3) if a player from A or B league was switched to C league he/she will be disqualified from playing A or B for remainder of season, a limit of 3 players per team can move up for post season roster. Players may be brought up to conclusion of A & B tournament draw. (Revised 2013)
- 15-A League standings will be kept. (Revised 1989)
- 15-B Entry fee will be one hundred twenty five dollars **(\$125)** per team for the league. This fee also includes regular season baseballs & the tournament. {Revised 2012}
- 15-C Consolidated with Rule 21-A of “A” & “B” rules. (Revised April 2001)
- 16-A The league will be divided into two **(2)** divisions with a maximum twelve **(12)** game schedule. Divisions will be same as the “A” & “B” leagues. The top two **(2)** teams in each division will earn trophies or plaques (maximum of fifteen **15**). (Revised 2009)
- 16-B The top four **(4)** teams in the tournament will receive trophies or plaques. (Added 1988)
NOTE: All other rules pertaining to pitching, batting, etc., will follow the “A” & “B” league rules.
- 16-C Only one **(1)** vote per community will be allowed per issue. (Added 1997)

INDEX

Note: First number is the page number (10) second number is rule number
Rules not found in “C” League rules you go to “A”-”B” rules

A

- “A” League rules 2-9
- Age requirements of players (2) 1-A (10) 1-A
- Amendments to Constitution & repeal of (1) Article VII
- Appeals (8) 14-B
- All Star Game Site chosen (8) 13-DD Rules of (6) 9-B

B

- “B” League rules 2-9
- Balks (8) 14-A
- Baseballs Balls & Strikes (11) 13-A
Official league balls (3) 5-F
Provided by home team (5) 5-E (11) 11-A
- Base paths “A”-”B”-”C” in feet (4) 8-A
- Base Runners Able to advance to home in “C” league (11) 12-A
“A” League stealing of bases on release of ball by pitcher (4) 8-AA
“C” League runners on base & at 3rd (11) 12-A
Excessive body contact (5) 8-I
Leading off early (5) 8-G
Missing base or leaving base early & on sacrifice fly (8) 14-B
Removing helmet while running bases (3) 6-D
Stealing bases on pitcher returning to mound (5) 8-F on mound “C” League (11) 12-A
Steal of home “A” & “B” (5) 8-E
- Bat Barrel size (8) 13-E
Throwing of (4) 6-E
- Batter Occupying more than one spot in order (7) 12-B exception to (7) 12-C
Throwing of bat (4) 6-E
Wearing of helmet (3) 6-B
- Batting order “C” League all bat (10) 5-A
“C” League batting order (10) 4-A
Exchanging line ups before game (10) 4-A
Extra hitter in (**replaced by batting entire roster**) (2) 2-G
Late arrival (10) 4-B
With 8 & if injury occurs with 8 (2) 2-F
- Boarder line players (2) 2-A

C

C League rules 10-12

Clinton Twp players eligibility of (2) 2-A

Coaches Conflict of schedule (3) 4-A
Crossing foul line twice in inning per pitcher (5) 8-CC
Exchanging batting line ups before game (10) 4-A
Filing a protest (7) 11-B after filing (7) 11-C
Offensive visit per inning (4) 8-C
Physically attacking umpire & ejection of (5) 8-J
Protest of game (7) 11-D
Removing of wild pitcher (10) 3-B
Responsibility of (1) Article V
Suspension of (1) Article VI (5) 8-J
Wing results report to (8) 20-A

Coin toss Determine Home/Away teams in tournament (8) 13-DD
Determine seeding in tournament (7) 13-D

Courtesy Runners not allowed (4) 6-F for injured player (4) 6-F

Constitution (1)

Articles of	I	organization to be known as
	II	objective of
	III	government of
	IV	meetings of
	V	coaches responsibility of
	VI	membership of players & suspension of coaches, players & communities
	VII	amendments to

D

Dead Ball calls "A" League leaves before release of pitch by pitcher (4) 8-AA
Batted ball with illegal bat (8) 13-E
"C" League after base runner steals base (11) 12-A
Removal of helmet on bases (3) 6-D
Runner leads off early (5) 8-G

Diagram of home plate for "C" League rule (11) 12-A page 12

Divisions "A" & "B" (8) 19-A for "C" (8) 19-A (11) 16-A
ends in a tie "A" "B" "C" (7) 13-D
trophies for "A" & "B" (7) 13-A (7) 13-B "C" (11) 16-A

Double elimination tournament (6) 9-C

Dropped 3rd strike: see uncaught 3rd strike

E

Entry Fees "A" & "B" (6) 10-A "C" (11) 15-B in hands of secretary (6) 10-B

Exemptions of boarder line players (2) 2-A

Extra hitter (2) 2-G

Extra Infielder in "C" League (10) 7-A

Extra Innings (5) 8-H

F

Field Dimensions (4) 8-A "A" League pitching & base paths (4) 8-A "B" & "C" base paths (10) 3-A "C" pitching

Free Substitutions (10) 6-A

G

Games Length of "A" & "B" (4) 7-A "C" (10) 8-A
Official Game (4) 7-C
Played by 1st tournament game (3) 3-A
Suspension of regular season game (4) 7-C (5) 8-H
Suspension of tournament game (4) 7-C (5) 8-H
Twelve game schedule in "C" league (11) 16-A
Two hour time limit "C" League (10) 8-A

Government (1) Article I Under supervision of President, election & term of officers, vote of body

I

Infield Fly (4) 7-E "A" & "B" (10) 10-A none in "C"

Index 13-18

Intentional Walk (4) 7-F

J

Jewelry wearing of (3) 6-A

M

Managing Personnel See also Rules Committee

(1) Article I
Authority to suspend (1) Article VI
Voting Right (1) Article III (11) 6-C
Written request for meeting (1) Article IV

Meetings (1) Article IV

Mercy Rule (8) 15-A

O

Outfielders in "C" League (10) 7-A

P

Passed Ball Definition in "C" League (11) 12-A
Stealing in "A" & "B" (5) 8-E

Pitcher Injury to (5) 8-CC
Innings per game (4) 8-B
Not eligible to pitch (2) 1-A 13 year old (7) 12-D in "B" (10) 2-A 11 or 12 year old in "C"
Relief of (5) 8-D
Removal for non control (10) 3-B
Starter returning to pitch (5) 8-D

Players Age requirements (2) 1-A in "A" & "B" in "C" & under 8 years old (10) 1-A
Area to play in (2)-A
"A" players to "B" (2) 2-E
"B" to "A" in a season (2) 2-D
player in "A" can't play in "B" (2) 2-C
"C" to "A" & "B" (11) 14-A
switch to "C" ineligible to play in "A" & "B" (11) 14-A
Batting order (7) 12-B exception to (7) 12-C (10) 4-A in "C"
Excessive body contact (5) 8-J
Injury to (2) 2-F (4) 6-F (7) 12-C
Late arrival of (2) 2-F (10) 4-B
Membership of (1) Article VI
Number on uniform (8) 17-A
On boarder line communities (2) 2-A
Registration Cards for each (2) 2-A 2-B
Removing of helmet on bases (3) 6-D
Safety Equipment (3) 6-A 6-B
Starters & sub reenter once (7) 12-A
Vouchers of in "C" (10) 1-A
Wearing of steel cleats or spikes (3) 6-C

President Additional Meetings called by (1) Article IV
Call Meeting of Rules Committee (7) 11-F
Duties of (1) Article VI
Election of & term of (1) Article III
Moderator of Suspension Meeting (5) 8-J
Notice of Protest (7) 11-C
Notify term of suspension (1) Article VI (5) 8-I
Ruling on non played game & or send to Rules Committee to decide (3) 3-A
Salary of (8) 18-A
Select Rules Committee Member for non completion of term (7) 11-F

O

Quorum Definition of to vote (1) Article IV

R

Roster “A” & “B” (6) 10-C “C” (10) 1-A
Addition to (8) 19-A
Change in (6) 10-D
No change after 1st tournament game (6) 10-F after June 15 (6) 10-E
roster size on “C” (10) 5-A

Rules Committee See also Managing Personnel

Appointment by President for uncompleted term (7) 11-F
Coach ejection meeting & ruling on (5) 8-J
Election & term of Article III (7) 11-F
Number of Members (7) 11-F
Non Completion of term (7) 11-F
Quorum of (1) Article IV (7) 11-F
Ruling on Bat Size (8) 13-E
 Exemptions (2) 2-A
 Game Protest (7) 11-E
 Non completed games (3) 3-A
Voting on issues involving member (7) 11-F

Rules “A” & “B” 2-9 “C” 10-11
If not covered in C League (11) 16-B if not covered in A-B-C (9) 20-B
Official at all Tournament & All Star Games (6) 9-B

Run Rule: see Mercy Rule

S

Secretary/Treasure Announce Meetings (1) Article IV
Collection of Fees (6) 9-A 10-A 10-B 10-C (11) 15-B
Duties of (1) Article IV VII
Financial Report of (1) Article IV
Keeping of standings (8) 20-A (11) 15-A
Notification of roster changes (6) 10-D
Receiving game results (8) 20-A
Receiving vouchers from “C” for players under 8 years old (10) 1-A
Salary of (8) 18-A
Submission of registration cards boarder line players (2) 2-A
Term of (1) Article III
Written request payment of tournament umpires (9) 21-A

Shorts Wearing of (10) 9-A

Sliding at Bases (6) 8-L

Standings (8) 20-A (11) 15-A

Steel cleats or spikes (3) 6-C

Teams

- Ahead after 4 innings (4) 7-C
- Ahead by 12 runs after 4 or 5 complete innings (8) 15-A
- Bringing up C players for A & B regular season & post season (11) 14-A
- Changes in roster (6) 10-D 10-E 10-F
- Division ends in tie (7) 13-D
- Divisions of (8) 19-A (11) 16-A
- Failing to be on field (4) 7-B
- Filing protest (7) 11-B 11-C 11-D 11-E
- Forfeit 1st game of tournament (6) 9-C
- Hosting tournament games (8) 13-DD
- Incomplete games (3) 3-A
- League Fees "A" & "B" (6) 10-A "C" (11) 15-B, in hands of secretary/treasure (6) 10-B
- Notification of opponents suspended player (5) 8-I
- Only team formed is "A" team (8) 16-A exception for no "A" team (8) 16-A
- Option of base umpire (3) 5-A
- Playing with 8 or less (2) 2-F 9 in "C" (10) 7-B
- Providing game balls (3) 5-E (11) 11-A
- Rosters: See Rosters
- Roster amounts in "C" (10) 5-A
- Schedule conflicts (3) 4-A
- Seeding of in tournament (6) 9-D (7) 13-D
- Submitting roster (6) 10-C (10) 1-A
- Suspension from League (1) Article VI from tournament (5) 8-J (7) 11-A
- Trophies awarded to in Division (7) 13-A 13-B (11) 16-A
in Tournament (7) 13-C (11) 16-B
- Vote of (11) 16-C
- Voucher for less than 8 years old (10) 1-A

Tie Breakers For division (7) 13-D For tournament seeds (7) 13-D

Tobacco Use (6) 8-K

Tournament

- Balls purchased by (3) 5-F
- Determine home/away teams (8) 13-DD
- Hosting games (8) 13-DD
- Payment of umpires (6) 9-E (9) 21-A
- Penalty of suspension (5) 8-J (7) 11-A
- Regular Season games completed by (3) 3-A
- Roster Changes prior to (6) 10-F
- Rules apply in (6) 9-B
- Run rule (4) 7-C (8) 15-A See also Mercy Rule
- Seeding of teams for (6) 9-D (7) 13-D
- Suspended Game (4) 7-C (5) 8-A
- Trophies in (7) 13-A 13-B 13-C (8) 13-DD (11) 16-A 16-B
- Umpires in (6) 9-E (9) 21-A

Treasurer: See Secretary/Treasure

Trophies & Plaques Regular Season (7) 13-A 13-B Tournament (7) 13-C (11) 16-A 16-B

Two hour time limit in C League (10) 8-A

U

Umpires	Allowing intentional walk	(4) 7-F
	Attacked by	(5) 8-I 8-J
	Filing protest to	(7) 11-B 11-C
	Furnished by home team	(3) 5-A
	Notification of 2 hour time limit	(10) 8-A
	Notification teams of playing field	(3) 5-B
	Paying of	(6) 9-E (9) 21-A
	Qualifications of	(3) 5-D in tournament championship (9) 21-A
	Rulings on	“A” League stealing Rule (4) 8-AA
		on offensive visits (4) 8-C
		on runner missing & or leaving base early (8) 14-B
		on thrown bats (4) 6-E
		Removing helmet on bases (3) 6-D
		Suspended game (4) 6-E
	Unable to finish game	(3) 5-C
	Visiting team option of Base Umpire	(3) 5-A
Uncaught 3 rd strike	in “A” League only	(4) 7-D

V

Vote per communities	(11) 16-C
Voucher for under 8 years old in “C” League	(10) 1-A